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This copy of the newsletter is the third of a three 

part series on Soapstone and will focus on the 

mill itself.  Located in the “Mill Village” area of 

Francestown off Potash Road the original mill 

was built in 1785 as a grist mill and later became 

a sawmill and remained such until destroyed by 

a flood in 1796.  It was soon replaced by George 

Dean who continued to operate it as a sawmill 

until 1889 when he sold it to Charles Williams 

who converted the mill for cutting soapstone.  

This was the mill that stood beside the 

Piscataquog River in Mill Village. 

Up until this time the stone from the quarry was 

shipped to a factory in Nashua for the 

manufacture of soapstone products and the 

quarried stone was taken by six-team horse-

drawn wagons to the railroad station in 

Greenfield for rail transport to Nashua for 

cutting. For a period in the 1880’s there was also 

a soapstone mill in Greenfield.   

Once George Dean converted the Mill Village mill 

in Francestown for cutting soapstone, there was 

no longer a need to ship it to other towns for 

cutting. 

 

The mill was forced to close in 1906 when the 

quarry shut down and the company declared 

bankruptcy.   It remained idle for decades and in 

1936 a flood washed away the dam which 

formed the mill pond at the Mill Village mill and 

also the water wheel.  The interior of the mill and 

its mechanical equipment, which was already in 

partial ruin after sitting idle for 30 years, was also 

further damaged.  However, like the Phoenix 

rising from the ashes, in 1946 a George Newell 

from Warren, VT bought the property and made 

necessary repairs to get the mill back into 

production. Some more modern 

machinery/equipment was installed in the mill.  

Since the flood had destroyed the dam and 

water wheel a gasoline engine was installed to 

power the mill.  The revitalized mill sawed 

soapstone until the existing supply was gone 

(some 8-10 tons) and then closed for the last 

time.  In 2016 the mill succumbed to time and 

neglect and collapsed into the Piscataquog River. 

 

There follows on page 2 details on what we 

would consider today to be the primitive 

workings of the mill.  Yet another theme 

crossword follows on pages 3 and 4. 

 



 

The mill converted for sawing soapstone was originally used as a grist mill and later a sawmill.  During all these 

applications the mill was powered by water.  The Mill Village dam held back the Piscataquog River and formed 

the mill pond.  The mill itself was built on the edge of the river below the dam with its water wheel turned by the 

flow of water from the dam.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The drawing at right depicts a water power 

mill apparatus similar to that used in the Mill 

Village soapstone mill.  The numbered items 

on this drawing correspond to the photos 

below taken in the Francestown Mill shortly 

before its final collapse.  The drawing at left 

shows a log being sawn while in the 

Francestown Mill this log would be replaced 

by the piece of soapstone that was to be 

sawn. 

“A” 

“1” 
“2” 

“3” “4” 

“B”

A” 

“5” 

#3 This is the clutch lever assembly for the 

carriage rail drive assembly that makes the saw 

carriage move back and forth. 

 

#4 This is the saw carriage and frame assembly 

with a slab of stone being sawn.  Also shown is #5, 

the hand wheel to control the flow of water. 

 

 

 

 

#1 This is the main drive shaft from the water 

wheel and shows the flywheel and crankarm “A” 

and the saw connecting links “B”.          

 

 #2  This is the belt drive for the reversing of the 

motion of the carriage. 
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